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PAULY, RocERS AND Co., p.C.
12700 SW 72"d Ave. t Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 ) (s03) 684-7s23 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

December 6,2021
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Lane Education Service District
Lane County, Oregon

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the remaining fund information of Lane Education Service District (the District) as of and for the yJar ended
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentatioriof the
basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
forthe purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the basic financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

ln our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmentalactivities, each major fund, and the remaining fund information
of Lane Education Service District as of June 30,2021, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

-1-



Other Matters

Re quir ed Supp I eme nt ary ldormat i on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the schedules of changes in total pension liability and
employer contributions for post-employment health benefits and stipends, or the schedules of net pension liability
and contributions for PERS or the Net OPEB Liability/Asset and Contributions for RHIA, or management's
discussion and analysis because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

The budgetary comparison schedules presented as Required Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of
contents, have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of
America, and in our opinion are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

Supp I ementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2
U.S, Code of Federal Regulations (CRF) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplementary information and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in ihe audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information and
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Other Informotion

The listing of board members containing their term expiration dates, located before the table of contents, and the
other information, as listed in the table of contents, have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements ando accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,we have also issued our reports dated December 6,2021 on
our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of compliance wiih certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of the reports is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. The
repofts are an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gove)nmeni Auditing itandards in
considering internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report
dated December 6, 2021, on our consideration of complLnce with certain provisions of laws and regulations,
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. ThJ purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of complianrc und the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on compliance.

?-
R"]t(

vZr*s
Rogers, CPA

PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Lane Education Service District, we offer readers of the District's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ln the government-wide statements, the district has a negative net position of $8,721,934 on
June 30, 2021. lncluded in this amount is $3,293,493 in capital assets and a negative
unrestricted balance of $12,289,433. A major contributor to the negative net position iJa net
pension liability of $17,663,661.

a

a PERS related financial information is included on the district's Statement of Net position. The
Statement includes an entry for the district's proportionate share of the pERS system's
overall unfunded liability. This has a material impact on the entity-wide Statement by reducing
the Unrestricted Net Position by $t 1,641,364. lt also inflates the expenses on the SfafemenJ
of Activities by $1 ,790,875. This entry only affects the entity-wide Sfafem ent of Net position
(page 4) and the Sfafement of Activities (page 5). This does not affect the financial statements
that are prepared on a budgetary basis and will not affect how the district budgets moving
forward.

. Of the $51 ,705,126 in governmental fund revenue, the General Fund represents 47% and
the Special Revenue Fund represents 51%.

. The General Fund received $24,320,453 in revenue in2O2O-21. The revenues that make up
the State School Fund formula dollars represented g4o/o of the total. Services to districts
were 3% and the remaining 3% was from other federal and local sources.

r The General Fund's ending fund balance is $4,105,857 or 16.9% of the total operating
revenues for the fund. A portion of the fund balance represents component district Flex Funds
and other discretionary funds that they've chosen to carry over and spend in subsequent
fiscal years. This amount is $863,57T or 3.60/o of operating revenues. The remaining fund
balance represents the ESD's unrestricted fund balance of $3,243,156 or 13.3o/o of operating
revenues. The General Fund's overall ending fund balance had a net increase of $837,485
from July 1,2020 to June 30,2021.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial
statements. The District's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

I



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements include:

Statement of Net Position The Sfafement of Net Position presents information on all of the assets
and liabilities of the District as of June 30,2021. Net Position are the assets remaining after the
liabilities have been paid off or otheruvise satisfied. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating.

Statement of Activities The Sfafement of Activities presents information showing how the net
assets of the District changed over the most recent fiscal year by tracking revenues, expenses and
other transactions that increase or reduce net assets. All changes in net position are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.9., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused vacation
leave.)

ln the government-wide financial statements, the District's activities are aggregated into the single
category of governmental activities. All of the District's basic functions are shown here, such as
administration, technology/learning services, curriculum/teaching support and special education,
These activities are primarily financed through property taxes, Oregon's State School Fund and other
intergovernmental revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fhe fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's funds, focusing
on its most significant or "majo/' funds - not the District as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related requirements. To be considered a major
fund, thefund's assets, liabilities, revenue orexpenses must be at least 1Oo/o of total of allfunds.
Governmental Funds. The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Unlike
government-wide financial statements, however, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both
the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditure and Changes
in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The District maintains four individual governmental funds, all of which are considered major funds.
lnformation is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental
fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditure and Changes in Fund Balances for these funds which
include the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund.

II



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Internal Service Fund. This fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures used in replacing
and maintaining the district's equipment.

Notes to the Financial S ments The notes provide additional information that is essentialto a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Qther lnformation ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents this Management's Discussion and Analysis which is tonsidered required
supplementary information. Other supplementary information includes statements for the non-major
governmental funds, budgetary comparison schedules and a schedule of property tax transactions.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Following are the significant variances when comparing the June 30, 2o2O and the June 30, 2021
Statements of Net Position:

Current Assets & Current Liabilities: The Accounts Receivable balance decreased
$8,610,845 from the prior year. The El-ECSE contract reimbursement request was submitted

III

a

Summary Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021
Assets
Current Assets
Non-Current Assets

TotalAssets

$ 21,090,173
3,159,017

$ 13,440,213
3 536 520

24,23 9,1 90 16 976 733

Deferred Outflow of Resources 5,769,857 6,904,836

Total Assets & Pension Deferrals 30,009,047 23,891,569

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

17,008,844
6,163,952

8,453,349
5,555,692

14 682 968 17 663 661
37 855 664 31 672 702

Deferred lnflows of Resources 961,122 930,901

Total Liabilities & Pension Deferrals 38,816,786 _ 32,603,503

Net Position:
Net lnvestment in CapitalAssets
Restricted for OPEB - RHIA
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

2,266,990
151,195

30,305
-11,267,061

3,293,493
243,027

30,979
-12,299,433

$ -8,818,581 $ -g 721,934



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

much later in the year in 19-20, but on a timelier basis in 20-21. The EI-ECSE subcontractor
submitted their invoices to the ESD near the end of the 19-20 fiscal year. This delayed the
ESD's reimbursement request to ODE. This was also the reason for the higher Current
Liabilities balance in 19-20. The accounts payable balance was greater due to the delay in
receiving the subcontractor's invoices until very late in the year.
Non-Current Assets: Two construction projects at the Westmoreland Campus contributed to
the net increase in the Capital Assets total by $285,671. The two projects that started in 20-
21 included an HVAC system upgrade and a seismic retrofit project.
Non-Current Liabilities: The decrease includes the annual principal payments on the debt
service.
The net pension liability increased $2,980,693. The district's propottionate share of the PERS
system wide unfunded liability is reflected in the chart. The other PERS related adjustments
are reflected in the Deferred Outflows & lnflows of Resources lines in both assets and
liabilities. The net amount of the adjustments for PERS reduced the net position by
$1,790,875.

Following are the significant variances when comparing the June 30, 2020 and the June 30,2021
Statement of Activities:

Charges for Service: lncreased grant revenue increased the indirect revenue to the General
Fund. Connected Lane County (CLC) became a separate entity and the ESD charged CLC
for staff Services.
Operating Grants: There were several grants that received increased funding and a few new

IV

a

a

a

a

a

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Service
Operating Grants & Contributions

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
State Support
Earnings on lnvestments
Other Local Revenue

Total Revenue

Statement of Activities

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

,934

322 977 323 302

-8 424 799

1 376 989 I 111 151

43 891 388 51 602 028

818 581

43 497 606 51 698 675

$-8 $ -8,721

-393,782 96,647
-8,818,581

$ 3,219,661
16,926,202

$ 3,700,988
24,090,990

Expenses:
Instruction
Support Services
Community Services
lnterest on Longterm Debt

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning Balance
Net Position- Ending Balance

29,282,269
14,242,984

43,158

33,630,355
17,648,371

0

7,516,894
14,296,335

161,525

7,759,384
14,967,279

69,983



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

grants, These include; EI-ECSE, Student lnvestment Act, Regional Educator Network,
Workforce lnnovation and Opporlunity Act, Seismic Rehabilitatioi, African American Black
Student Success.

' Earnings on lnvestments: The average interest rate declined another 50% during the year.
' Other Local Revenue: ln 2019-20, the ESD received a legal setflement related to a failed

roofing application and insurance proceeds for water damage caused by the failed roof.
' lnstruction: lncludes expenditures related to the nearly $4 million increase to the EI-ECSE

contract with ODE.
Support Services:
above.

lncreased spending in the special Revenue fund for the grants listed

' Community Services: Eugene School District is the food service provider for the programs at
the Westmoreland Campus. Due to special funding during the pandemic, they wer6 able to
combine our program costs within their program. This allowed them to provide the service
without charging the ESD in 20-21.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

a

Governmental Funds The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on
relatively short-term cash flow and funding for future basic services. ln particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available at the end of the
fiscal year.

General Fund - The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. As of June 30, 2021,
the fund balance was $4,105,857. The General Fund's overall ending fund balance had a net
increase of $837,485 for the year. The unreserved fund balance increased $671,g7g and the
component district Flex Funds/Other Funds increased $166,493.

Special Revenue Fund - The majority of the activity in the special revenue funds is for grants,
contracts and miscellaneous reseryes. lncluded in those funds is a technology fund that pr-ovides
limited services to other agencies and a fund that captures all of the riiscellaneous school
improvemenVspecial education activities. The combined fund balance of these two funds is 93% of
the total for all special revenue funds.

Debt Seruice Fund - The District uses this fund to account for the repayment of the 2007 pension
obligation bonds issued to advance fund the District's unfunded actuarial liability for the fublic
Employee Retirement System (PERS). On a budgetary basis, the year ended with a fund balance
of $30,979.

Capital Proiects Fund - This fund is maintained for major repairs to the ESD's two facilitie s. g442,231
was spent on the following projects; main campus facilities remodel in School lmprovement area,
HVAC cooling tower replacement and the start of the Westmoreland seismic retiofit project. The
retrofit project is funded by a Seismic Rehabilitation grant from Business Oregon in the amount of
$2,378,365. There was a $242,719 transfer from the General Fund to support these and future
projects. The district also has annual debt service payments of $63,067 for the loan used for the
main campus roof replacement project. As of June 30, 2021, there was $143,857 available to meet
the ongoing capital needs of the district.

V



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

lnternalService Fund - This fund provides equipment replacement services for the ESD. This
includes fixed asset level equipment such as vehicles, copiers, mowers and other department
specific equipment, The fund also provides for the replacement of personal computers and
printers. The year end fund balance was to $508,676. Purchases during the year included four
copiers, a dump trailer and computer equipment. There was also revenue of $229,372. The Net
Position increased $1 18,096 in 2020-21.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
The Lane ESD board approved an appropriations transfer in 2020-21. Appropriations were adjusted
in the following funds; in the General Fund to reflect the changes in district service orders, in the
Special Revenue Fund to accommodate the increased grants/contracts revenue and in the Capital
Projects Fund for the Seismic Rehabilitation Grant.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Gapital Assets The District's investment in capital assets includes buildings and
improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment. As of June 30, 2021, the District had
invested $3,293,493 in capital assets, net of depreciation, as shown on the following table.
There was a net increase in the total value due to the Westmoreland campus HVAC and
seismic retrofit projects. The decreases in balances are from depreciation of the assets.

Debt
At the end of the fiscal year, the District had outstanding debt of $4,815,000 in limited tax pension
bonds. Principal payments in the amount of $495,000 were made during the fiscal year. The
outstanding debt on the note payable for the roof replacement is $691,972.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to present the user (citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors) with
a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to the District's Director of Business Services at 1200 Highway
99N, Eugene, OR 97402.

Dz*c 9a",/r/g
Director of Business Services
Lane Education Service District

a

Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation

June 30, 2020

Land
Construction in Progress
Buildings & lmprovements
Vehicles
Furniture & Equipment

Total

$ $

149 409 129 784

June 30 2021

$ 2,996,980 $ 3,293,493

501,013
0

2,242,829
103,729

501 ,013
419,452

2,153,308
89,936

VI
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30,2021

Governmental
Activities

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Property Taxes Receivable
Grant and Other Receivables

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncunent Assets:

Net OPEB Asset - RHIA
Capital Assets - Nondepreciable
Capital Assets - Depreciable, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension Related Deferrals - pERS

Defened Outflows - OPEB RHIA
Deferred Outflows - OPEB Health Insurance
Deferred Outflows - OPEB Stipends

Total Defered Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll, Withholdings, and Benefits
Deposits Payable

Uneamed Revenue

Current Maturities of Bonds & Notes payable

Total Cunent Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Vacation
OPEB Liability - Stipends
OPEB Liability - Health Insurance
Net Pension Liability - pERS

Bonds & Notes Payable, Net of Current Maturities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Related Deferrals - pERS

Deferred Inflows - OPEB RHIA
Defened Inflows - OPEB Health Insurance
Deferred Inflows - OPEB Stipends

Total Defened Inflows ofResources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for RHIA Asset
Restricted for Debt Service
Uruestricted

Total Net Position

$ 5,907,622
280,456

7,196,403

55,732

13,440.213

243,027

920,465

2,373 ,028
3.536.s20

16.976.733

6,827,87&

2'1,343

39,498

10,117

6,904,836

23.88 l.569

6,249,140

1,463,799

3,018

148,059

217,287

58, l 64

381,248
17,663,661

4.898.993

31,672,702

805,5 8l
79,6s0

41,966

3.604

930,801

32.603.s03

3,293,493

243,027

30,979
(12.289.433)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

8.453.349

23.219 15?

-4-
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Expenses

Charges for
Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Changes in
Net PositionFunctions/Programs

Instruction

Support Services

Interest on Long-Term Obligations

Total Governmental Activities $ 51,602,028 $ 3,700,988 $ 24,090,890

$ 33,630,355 $

17,648,371

1?? ?n?

80'1,992 $

2,892,996

l7,296,795 $

6,794,09s

(15,525,568)

(7,961,280)

(323,302)

(23,8 10,1 50)

General Revenues:

Property Taxes

State Support
Earnings on Investments

Other Local Revenues

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position Beginning of Year

Net Position End of Year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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7,759,384
14,967,279

69,983

l,t10,l5r

23,906,79'7

96,647

(8,8r 8,58 1)

$ (8;t21.,934)



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2021

GENERAL
SPECIAL

REVENUE
DEBT

SERVICE
CAPITAL

PROJECTS TOTALS
ASSETS:

Cash and Investments
Receivables:

Grants and Other Receivables
Taxes

Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE:

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Payroll, Withholdings, and Benefits
Deposits
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavai lable Revenue-Propelty Taxes

Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balance

$ 4,620,865 $

804,601
280,456

3,175,282
s5,732

659,320 $

6,211,829

30,979 $ 87,782 $

179,973

5,398,946

7,196,403
280,456

3,175,282
55,732

$ 8,936,936 $ 6,87 r, 149 $ 30,979 $ 267,755 $ 16,106,819

$ 3,1 18,r78 $ 3,007,064 $

3,175,282
t6,976

$ 123,898 $

1,446,823

3,018

148,059

4,568,019 6,347,381 123,898 l1

263,060 263,060

55,732 55,732
30,979

667,625
4,050,125

30,979
523,768 143,857

125

4,1 05,857 523,768 30,979 143,857

$ 8,936,936 $ 6,871,149 $ 30,979 $ 267,755 $ 16,106,819

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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r,463,799
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, ORBGON

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2021

Total Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

The PERS net pension asset (liability) is the difference between the total pension liability and the assets

set aside to pay benefits earned to past and current employees and beneficiaries.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the pension plan include differences between

expected and actual experience, changes ofassumptions, differences between projects and acfual earning,

and contributions subsequent to the measurement date.

Deferred Outflows - PERS

Deferred Outflows - OPEB RHIA
Deferred Outflows - OPEB Stipends

Deferred Outflows - Health Insurance

Deferred Inflows - PERS

Deferred Inflows - OPEB RHIA
Deferred Inflows - OPEB Stipends

Deferred Inflows - Health Insurance

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

Capital Assets, net

Delinquent property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not

available soon enough to pay for the curent period's expenditures, and

therefore are unavailable in the funds.

The OPEB asset (liability) is not reported as an asset (liability) in the governmental funds.

OPEB - RHIA
OPEB - Stipends

OPEB - Health Insurance

The assets and liabilities ofthe internal service funds are included in the governmental

activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Long-term liabilities not payable in the current year are not reported as

governmental fund liabilities. These liabilities consist of:

Accrued Vacation Payable

Bonds & Notes Payable

Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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$ 243,027
(58, I 64)

(38 1,248)

$ 4,804,461

(17,663,661)

6,827,878
27,343

10,117

39,498
(805,58 1)

(79,650)
(3,604)

(41,e66)

3,293,493

263,060

(196,38s)

508,676

(2t7,281)
(5,488,326)

$ (8,72r,934)



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

GENERAL
SPECIAL

REVENUE
DEBT

SERVICE
CAPITAL

PROJECTS TOTAL
REVENUES:

From Local Sources
From State Sources

From Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Instruction

Support Services

Debt Service

Capital Outlay
Other Uses

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)

Apportionment of Funds
Transfer In
Transfer Out

Total Other Financing
Sources, (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

$ 9,349,862 $

r4,967,279

3,312

2,415,038 $
I 8,845,5 I 3

793,937 $

344,399
I 2,55 8,837

34,157,191
4,989.098

$

98s,786

24.3 20,453 7 793,937 344,399 5 I,705 126

7,422,886
8,048,931

2,400,158

7,48t,600 91,642
63,067

350,589

9,823,044
r5,622,173

856,330

3 50,589

Total Expenditures

Excess ofRevenues Over, (Under)
Expenditures

793,263

I5 71,817 1,758 793,263 505,298 26,652,136

8,848,636 t6,364,579 674 (160,899) 2s,0s2,990

(r 6,559,844)
135,481 242,719

(8,01 1,151) (t6,424,363) 242,719 192,79s)

837,485 (s9,784) 8l,820

62,037

860, l 95

3,268 77) 583,552 30,305

$ 4,105,857 s s23,768 $ 30,979 $ 143,8s7 $ 4,804,461

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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(7,632,es1)

(378,200)

(24,192,7e5)

378,200
(378,200)
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30 202t

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

The revenue (expense) represents the changes in net asset (liability) from year to year due to changes

in total asset (liability) and the fair value ofplan net position available to pay benefits.

PERS

OPEB - RHIA
OPEB - Health

OPEB - Stipend

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation.

Capital Asset Additions
Depreciation expense

Long-term debt proceeds are leported as other financing sources in governmental funds. In the

Statement of Net Position, however, issuing long-term debt increases liabilitites. Similarly, repayment

of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the Statement

of Net Position. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded repayments:

Debt Principal Repaid

Accrued Vacation

Govemmental funds report the effect of premiums and discounts when debt

is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the

Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences:

Amortization of premium/(discount)

Internal service funds are used to account for revenues and expenditures used in replacing

and maintaining buildings and equipment.

Because some propedy taxes will not be collected for several months after the District's

fiscal year ends, they are not considered as "available" revenues in the governmental

funds, and are instead recorded as unavailable revenue. They are, however, recorded

as revenues in the Statement of Activities.

Change in Net Position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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557,154
(260,641)

860,195

(1,688,1 14)

296,513

519,071

(2,663)

I l 8,096

(6,4s 1)

$

$ (1,790,875)

68,462

t7,241
I 7,058

53 3,028

(1 3,e57)

$ 96,647



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLINTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - INTERNAL SERVICE FLIND
June 30,2027

ASSETS

Deposits and Investments

Total Assets

Unrestricted

TotalNet Position

$ 508,676

508,676

508,676

$ 508,676

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
-t0-



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FTIND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Operating Revenues:

Services Provided Other Funds

Operating Expenses

Cost of Services

Operating Income (Loss)

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

$ 229,372

1n,276

I 1 8,096

390,580

$ 508,676

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLINTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICEFUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Other Funds

Payments to Vendors

Net Cash from (Used) Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Balance - Beginning

Cash Balance - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash provided by
Operating Activities:

Operating Income

Net Cash from (Used) Provided by Operating Activities

$ 229,372

(111,276)

I 18,096

390,580

$ 508,676

$ 1 18,096

$ I 18,096

See accompanying notes torbasis financial statements.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I

The basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units in the United States of America. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporling principles, The significant accounting policies are described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The District is a political subdivision of the state of Oregon governed by an independently elected Board of
Directors and is legally separate from all other entities. It is also financially independent of other state and
local governmental units. It has the power to levy taxes, is responsible for its debts, and is entitled to any
surpluses. The financial reporting consists of the District, any organization for which the District is
financially accountable, and any other organizations that, because of the nature and significance of their
relationship with the District, may not be excluded from the District's financial reporting. Component units,
as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 67, are separate entities
that are included in the District's reporting because of the significance of their operational or financial
relationships with the District. currently, there are no component units.

B S

WIDE

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the activities. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements, Governmental activities normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the expenses of a given function are offset by
program revenues. Program revenues include l) charges to those who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function. State school support, taxes, and other items
not properly included among program revenues are repofted instead as general revenues.

The government-wide financial statements and Internal Service fund use the economic resources
measurenxent focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all the eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

BA

G
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT UNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FL]ND FINANCIAL STATE MENTS

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds

Governmental funds: Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Governmental funds are used to account for the general government activities. Governmental fund types use

the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the rnodified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e.,
when they are "measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period, which is 60 days. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred,
except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, interfund
transactions, pension and OPEB costs, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which
are not recognized as expenditures because they will be liquidated with future expendable financial
resources.

Property taxes are recognized as revenue only if received within 60 days of year-end.
Entitlements, shared revenues, and interest are recognized as revenue in the period to which they relate.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifing expenditures have been
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

Charges for services are recognized as revenue in the period in which the seruices are performed.
Other receipts are not considered measurable and available until cash is received,

Other major differences between the modified accrual basis and the accrual basis are:

Post-employment benefits are expensed when paid rather than when incurred.
Capital outlay expenditures are recognized as expenditures when the assets are acquired (depreciation is

not recorded).
Proceeds of long-term borrowing are recognized as an "other financing source" and principal paid is

considered an expenditure when paid.
Supply inventory is expensed when purchased.
The Net Pension Liability is not recorded and the OPEB assets are not recorded.
Pension and OPEB Costs are not recorded as an expense until paid.

There are the following major governmental funds

The General Fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures. Principal revenue
sources are property taxes and the state school fund.
The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the operating revenues and expenditures of grants awarded.
Grant revenues are primarily from federal, state, and local governments.
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the annual debt service on the 2007 pension bonds,
The Capital Projects Fund provides facility services for the District. Services include major
repair/replacement projects for the grounds and buildings at the Main Campus and the Westmoreland
facilities.

a
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLINTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. s

There is also tl,e following proprietary fund:

' The Internal Service Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures used in replacing and maintaining
buildings and equiprnent.

ASSETS. LIABILITIES AND EOUITY

CASH AND CASH EOUTVALENTS

Cash and investments consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and investments in the State of Oregon
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). Investments in the LGIP are considered highly liq'uid
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Oregon Revised Statutes 294.035 authorizes investment in the LGIP, general obligations of the U.S.
Government and its agencies, bankers' acceptances, and commercial paper ratei A-Z or better by
Standard & Poor's Corporation or P-2 or better by Moody's Investors Service, among others.

RECETVABLES

Grant and other accounts receivables consist of amounts due from school districts for services provided,
grants, and reimbursements. Management believes that the amount of any uncollectible accounts
included in receivables is immaterial; therefore, no provision for uncollectible accounts has been made.

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "interfund receivables/payibles" it.f., th" cu*ent poiion of
interfund loans) or "advances tolfrom other funds" (I.E., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due tolfrom other funds".

PROPERTY TAXES

Uncollected real and personal property taxes are reflected on the statement of net position and the
balance sheet as receivables. Uncollected taxes are deemed by management to be substantially
collectible or recoverable through liens; therefore, no allowance for uncollectible taxes has been
established' All property taxes receivable are due from property owners within the District.

Under state law, county governments are responsible for extending authorized property tax levies,
computing tax rates, billing and collecting all property taxes, and making periodic distributions of
collections to entities levying taxes. Property taxes become a lien against thle property when levied on
July 1 of each year and arepayable in three installments due on Novernber 15, February 15 and May 15.
Property tax collections are distributed monthly except for November, when such distributions are made
weekly.

-15-



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLINTY, OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT G POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUPPLY INVENTORY

Supplies inventory is valued at cost using first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Accounting for supplies
inventory is based on the consumption method in the government-wide financial statements. Under the
consumption method, all inventory items are charged to expenditures of user departments at the time of
withdrawal from inventory. Donated commodities consumed during the year are reported as revenues
and expenditures. The amount of unused supply inventories and donated commodities at the balance
sheet date is considered immaterial by rnanagement for reporting purposes.

PREPAID ITEMS

Payments to vendors may reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress, are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair market value on the date donated. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to the value of the assets or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Depreciation is recorded on
capital assets on the straight-line method over the useful life of the asset. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

The eapital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated lives

Buildings and related improvements
Vehicles
Furniture, fixtures, and instructional equipment

20 - 40 years
l0 - 15 years

I 0 years

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Policy is to permit employees to earn vacation credits, Accumulated unpaid vacation must be taken within
one year and is accrued as earned and is reported as an obligation on the Statement of Net Position. Sick pay,
which does not vest, is recorded as an expenditure or expense when leave is taken.

UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue is reported on the Statement of Net Position when resources are received before the
District has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incuring qualiffing
expenditures.

On the fund financial statements, unearned revenue arises when resources do not satisfr both the measurable
and available criteria for recognition in the current year, such as property taxes received more than 60 days
after year-end. In subsequent periods, when both recognition criteria are met, the revenue is recognized.

-16-



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLTNTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally acceptedin the United States of America requires management to make estimates und as.umptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and ixpenditures during the reporting period,
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Bonds and notes payable and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the government-wide
financial statements. The governmental fund financial statements do not report long-ierm obligations
because they do not require the use ofcurrent financial resources. Rather, governmental funds recognlze the
proceeds of debt issued as another financing source and report the repaymeit of debt principal and interest as
an expenditure,

Bond prerniums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the bonds-
outstanding method in the government-wide and intemal service fund financial statements. The bonds-
outstanding method does not differ significantly from the effective interest rate method. Unamortized
premiums and discounts are presented as additions or subtractions from the face amount of the bonds. In the
fund financial statements, premiums and discounts are recognized in the current period.

LEASES

Leases which meet certain criteria established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) are
classified as capital leases, and the assets and related liabilities are recorded at amounts equal to the lesser of
the present value of minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased property at the beginning of the
respective lease term' Leases which do not meet the criteria of a capital tlur" url classifieJ as oierating
leases. At June 30,2021, there were no capital leases or any operating l"ur". that were material.

RETIREMENT PLAN

Substantially all of the District's employees are pafticipants in the State of oregon public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outfl^ows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
fiduciary net position of PERS and additions toldeductions from PERS's fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

EARLY VOLLTNTARY RETIREMENT

Certain employees with a minimum of 18 years of service are eligible for early retirement benefits, which are
considered a special termination benefit. in the government-wide financial siatements, the estimated present
value of future benefits is recognized as a liability when the employee retires, In the fund financial
statements an expenditure is not recognized until the benefits are paid,

G
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLINTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOTINTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ENCUMBRANCES

During the year, encumbrances are used for administrative control purposes; purchase orders and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded to reserve related appropriations. At year end,
encumbrances are reversed to the extent that a liability has not been incurred and encumbrances lapse.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets,

consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowing used for the acquisition of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are

lirnitations imposed on its use either through the enabling legislation adopted or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments. At June 30, 2021, the only
restrictions to net position were for Debt Service and the OPEB RHIA asset. Unrestricted net position
consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories previously mentioned.

FI.IND BALANCE

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Repofting and Govemmental Fund-type Definitions is followed. The
objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clariSing the existing governmental
fund-type definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications are -
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in a spendable form. The

nonspendable fund balance represents prepaid items.

Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a

specific purpose (such as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other

governments) or are restricted by law (constitutionally or by enabling legislation).

Committed fund balance represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a

particular purpose. The use of committed funds would be approved by resolution,

a Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use

resources for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or

committed. Intent can be stipulated by the governing body or by an official to whom that

authority has been given by the governing body. Authority to classifii portion of ending fund

balance as Assigned is hereby granted to the Superintendent and Director of Business Services.

Such assignments cannot exceed the available (spendable, unrestricted, uncommitted) fund

balance in any particular fund.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the General Fund. Only the General

Fund may report a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds would report

any negative residual fund balance as unassigned,

a

a

a

a
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COTJNTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF

The governing body has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance categories:
Restricted resources are spent first when both restricted and unrestricted lcommitteO, assigned or unasslgned)
resources are available for expenditures. When unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spenditg is
committed (if applicable), assigned (if applicable) and unassigned.

There were no committed fund balances as of June30,202l.

The Board has determined that an appropriate target for the total of all Committed, Assigned and Unassigned
fund balances in the General Fund shall be set at no less than 8%o of General Fund revenues for the fiscal
year.

In addition to assets, the basic financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, defercid outflows of resources. represents a
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. At June 30, 2021 there were deferyed outflows representing
PERS pension related deferrals, OPEB - Stipends related deferals, OPEB - Health Insurance related
deferrals, and OPEB - RHIA related deferrals in the Statement of Net Position.

In addition to liabilities, the basic financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element representi un u"qri.ition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inhow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The District has two types of items which qualifu for reporting in this category. The drst, unavailable
revenue, is in the governmental funds balance sheet for property taxes, These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. At June 30,2021 there
also were deferred inflows representing PERS pension related deferrals, OPEB - Health Insurance related
deferrals, OPEB - Stipends related deferrals, and OPEB - RHIA related deferrals in the Statement of Net
Position.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Observable inputs are developed
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are
developed based on the best information available about the assumptions rnarklt participants would use in
pricing the asset. The classification of securities within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the activity
level in the market for the security type and the inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows:

F
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Level 1 - unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities that
each Fund has the ability to access
Level 2 - other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets
that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as

interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, loss severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market-
corroborated inputs)
Level 3 - unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the extent
observable inputs are not available (including each Fund's own assumptions used in determining the fair
value of investments)

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments
categorized in Level 3. The inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

2. STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Legally required budgets are adopted for all funds on the modified accrual basis, The resolution authorizing
appropriations sets the level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. This resolution
establishes appropriations at the functional level within each fund. A detailed budget is also prepared,
containing more specific detailed information than the above mentioned expenditure appropriation
categories, Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental
budget. A supplemental budget requires hearings before the public, publications in newspapers, and approval
by the Budget Committee and the Board of Directors.

Original budgets may be modified by the preparation of supplemental budgets. There were no supplemental
budgets authorized by the Board of Directors during the year. Budgets may also be modified by
appropriation transfers between the levels of control. Management may make transfers of appropriations
within a function. Transfers of appropriations between functions require the approval of the Board of
Directors. One appropriation transfer was authorizedby the Board of Directors during the year. Expenditures
of the various funds were within authorized appropriations, except for Support Services in the Special
Revenue Fund which was over-expended by $121,106 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

3. BUDGET/GAAP REPORTING DIFFERENCES

While the government-wide statements report the financial position, results of operations, and changes in
fund balance/net position on the accrual basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP), the budgetary basis of accounting differs from generally accepted accounting
principles. The budgetary statements provided as part of supplementary information elsewhere in this report
are presented on the modified accrual basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the
budget. The primary differences between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis are described in Note 1.
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4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Statutes authorize investment in banker's acceptances, time certificates of deposit, repurchase agreernents,
obligations of the United States and its agencies and instrumentalities, and the O."gott State Treasuier's Local
Government Investment Pool. According to District Procedures State statutes govern cash management
policies.

cash and Investments at June 30,2021, (recorded at fair value) consisted of:

2021
Deposits with Financial Institutions
Demand Deposits
Petty Cash

Investments

Total $ s.907,622

InvestmentS

Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund,
which is an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, and is not registered
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Fair value of the iGfp is
calculated at the same value as the number of pool shares owned. The unit of account is each share held, and
the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool's share price multiplied by the number of shares
held. Investments in the Short-Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon lnvestment Council, and
portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which establish diversification
percentages and specif, the types and maturities of investments. The portfolio guidelines permit securities
lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements.
The fund's compliance with all portfolio guidelines can be found in their annual repoft when issued. The
LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is neither insured nor
guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain the value of
share investments at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool. We intend to
measure these investments at book value since it approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety
of investments' These investments are characterized as a level 2 fair value measurement in the Oregon Short
Term Fund's audited financial report. Amounts in the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment pool
are not required to be collateralized. The audited financial reports of the Oregon Short Term Fund can be
found here:

o

If the link has expired please contact the oregon short Term Fund directly

$ (16,394)

400

5,923,616
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4 AND

There were the following investments and maturities

Fair Value

Investment Maturities (in months)

Less than 3 3-18 18-59Investment Type

State Treasurer's Investment Pool $5,923,616 $5,923,616 $ $

Total $5,923,616 _$s&eJQ_ $

Interest Rate Risk - Investmqnts

Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when the local
government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed by the OSTFB.
There are no investments that exceed an 18 month maturity.

Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned.

There is no deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30,2021, $250,000 of the bank balance of
$624,594 was insured by federal depository GDIC) insurance, and the remaining balance was collateralized
by the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).

Credit Risk - Investments

Oregon Revised Statutes do not limit investments as to credit rating for securities purchased from US

Government Agencies or USGSE. The State Investment Pool is not rated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits. Oregon Revised Statutes require deposits

to be adequately covered by federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved depository as identified
by the Treasury.

5. GRANTSRECETVABLE

Special revenue fund grants receivable are comprised of claims for reimbursement of costs under various

federal and state grant programs, No provision for bad debts has been made as management believes all
amounts are collectible.

$
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year was as follows

Balance
July 1,2020

Balance
Decreases June 30,2021Increases

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
I-and

Construction in Progress
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Bui ldings and Improvements
Vehicles

Fumiture, fi xtures, and instructional equipment
Total Capital Assets

I-ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Improvements
Vehicles

Fumifure, fi xtrues, and instructional equiprnent
Total Accumu lated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net

(88 I ,934) (99,800)
(5,192,139) (260,641)

$2. 996,980

$ 501,013 $

6,326,372

320,391

419,452

57,527

$ 501,013

419,452

$

1.031 ,343 80 175

6,3g3,ggg

320,391

1,1I1,519
179 119 557 154 8.73 6,273

(4,083,543)
(216,662)

(t47,048)
(t3,793)

- (4,230,591)
- Q30,455)

(98t,734)
(5.442,780)

$ 3,293,493

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was allocated to the functions as follows:

Function Amount

Instruction

Support

Total 260,641

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

There is exposure to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which commercial insurance is carried. Settled
claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage for any of the past three fiscal years.

8. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

In October 2007, the District issued a series 2007 limited tax pension term bond totaling $8,290,000 with an
interest rate of 5.617% and principal payable through 2028.Therc are no significant default remedy clauses
noted in the pension bond agreement that would impact the financial statements or require disclosure under
GASB 88.

I 19,813

140,828
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8. LONG TERM OBLTGATTONS (CONTTNUEp)

In January 2020, the District issued a Full Faith and Credit Note Series 2020 for a roof replacement project
for $730,000 with an interest rate of 3.43% and principal payable through 2035. In the event of default, the
lender may make a demand for the Early Redemption Value corresponding to the previously received
payrnent (or if none is stated, then 103% of the outstanding principal balance due under the Note), and
enforce and perfect its rights in the Project Fund and any other funds and accounts referenced in the
agreement. Additionally, in the event of default, the principal amount of the Note then outstanding shall bear
interest at the default rate of 9Yo, and the District will be responsible for interest at the default rate as well as

all of the lender's costs of collection and enforcement.

Principal

Outstanding
71v2020

$ 730,000 $

5,310,000

(21,309)

Issued Redeemed

Outstanding
613012021

Due Within
One Year

Direct Borrowing:
Notes Payable

Bonds Payable:
Limited Tax Pension Bond

Discount Related to Bond
Issuance discounts

$ 38,028 S 691,972 $ 39,333

495,000 4,815,000 550,000

(2,663) (18,646)

Total $ 6,018,691 $ $ 530,365 $5,488,326 _$_l!9Jil_

Interest

Outstanding

Beginning Due Paid

Outstanding

Endins

Notes Payable

Limited tax pension bonds

Total $ 7,625,876 $323,302 $ 323.302 $1,302,574

Total interest expense for the year was $323,302 which is included as a direct expense on the Statement of
Activities, No interest was capitalized for the year.

$ 216,008
1,409,869

$ 25,039
298,263

$ 25,039

298,263
$ 190,969

1,111,605

Annual Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
Limited Tax Pension Bond Full Faith & Credit Note Total

Fiscal Yr Ending

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027 -2031

2032-2035

Principal

$ 550,000
615,000

680,000

750,000

8 3 0,000

1,390,000

Interest

$ 270,459

239,565

205,021

166,825

124,698

I 05,03 g

Principal

$ 39,333

40,682

42,077

43,520

45,013

249,31I
232,036

Interest

23,735

22,386
20,990

19,547

18,054

66,025

20,233

Principal

599,333

655,682

722,07',l

793,520

875,013

1 ,639 ,31 I

232,036

Interest

$ 294,193

26t,g5l
226,011

186,372

t42,7 52

l7 t,063
20,233

$ $

$ 4,815,000 $ 1,1 I 1,605 $ 691,972 $ 190,969 $ 5,506,972
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9. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION

Plan Description - The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined beneht plan' All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant to oregon Revised
stafute (oRS) chapters 238 and 238A. oregon PERS produces an independently audited comprehensive Annual Financial
Report which can be found at:

If the link is expired please contact oregon pERS for this information.

PERS Pension (Chapter 238). The oRS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to new members
hired on or after August 29, 2003.

i' Pension Benefits. The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be
selected from 13 retirement benefit options. These opti-oni include survivorship benefits and
lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on yea.i of service and final uu"iug" salary. A
percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, and 1.67 percent for geieral service
employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final averag" *ilury. Benefits
may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who-were contributing
before August 2 l, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefits results.
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement
allowance ifhe or she has had a contribution in each offive calendar years or his reached at least 50 years
of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members).
General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire members are eligible after
reaching age 50. Tier I general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prioito age 5g
with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if retirement occurs-prior
to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier 2 members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The
oRS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29,
2003.

ii' Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum
refund of the member's account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition,
the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account
balance, provided one or rnore of the following contributions are met:. member was employed by pERS employer at the time of death,

' member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment,e member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PBRS-covered job, oro member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of
death.

iii. Disability Benefits. A member with l0 or more years of creditable service who becomes
disabled from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A
disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (inciuding pERS
judge mernbers) for disability benefits regardless of the tengttr of pERS-covered servic.i Upon
qualifuing for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for
police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit,

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement. Members may choose to continue participation in their
variable account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in
the fair value of the underlying global equity investments of that account. Under ORS 23g.360
monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes (COLA). The COLA is
capped at 2.0 percent.

a.
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b. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB), The ORS Chapter 238A' Defined Benefit Pension Program
provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003 .

i. Pension Benefits, This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer
contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal
retirement age:
Police andfire:1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary,

Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit.

To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a

police and fire member for at least five years immediately preceding retirement.

General ser"vice:1,5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.

Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.

A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the

member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal
retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.

ii. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is

constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the

pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member. The surviving spouse may elect to

delay payment of the death benefit, but payment must commence no later than December 3 I of the calendar

year in which the member would have reached 70%years.
iii, Disability Benefits, A member who has accrued l0 or more years of retirement credits before the member

becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability
benefit of 45 percent of the member's salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the

disability occurred.

Contributions - PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These

contributions, expressed as a percentage ofcovered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when

due. The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. Employer
contribution rates during the period were based on the December 3 l, 2017 actuarial valuation, which became effective July l,
2019. The state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivision have rnade unfunded actuarial

liability payments and their rates have been reduced. Effective January I , 2020, Senate Bill I 049 requires employees to pay

contributions on re-employed PERS retirees' salaries as if they were an active member, excluding IAP (6%) contributions.
Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021 were 52,833,434, excluding amounts to fund employer speciltc

liabilities. In addition approximately $600,135 in employee contributions were paid or picked up by the District in fiscal
2021.

Pension Asset or Liability - At June 30,2021, the District reported a net pension liability of $17,663,661 for its

proportionate share of the net pension liability. The pension liability was measured as of June 30,2020, and the total pension

liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated December 31,2018. The

District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to

the pension plan relative to the projected conhibutions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. As of the

measurement date of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Dishict's proportion was .081 percent and .085 percent, respectively.

Pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $1,790,875.
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The rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2021 were:
(l) Tier l/Tier 2 -23.54%(2) OPSRP general services - 18.09%
(3) PERS UAL - 22.72%

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Net changes in proportionate share
Differences between City contributions
and proportionate share of contributions
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below)
City contributions subsequent to measuring date
Deferred outfl ow (infl ow) of resources

Deferred Outflow
ofResources

Deferred Inflow
ofResources

$ 777,415
947,953

2,O77,O17

169,041

24,018

33,214

553,612

$

218,755
805,591

2 833 34
$ 6 827 878 $ 805,591

The amount of contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the net pension liability in
the fiscal year ended June30,2022.

Subtotal amounts related to pension as deferred outflows of resources, $3,994,444, and defened inflows of resources,
($805,58 l), net to ($3, I 88,863) and will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
$ 687,597

1,011,642

915,301
597,985
(23,662)

3,994,444

2022

2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Total _$ 3,tgg,g63

All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon pERS system-wide
GASB 68 reporting summary dated March 12,2021, Oregon PERS produces an independently audited CAFR which can be
found at:

https ://www. oregon. gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2 020-CAFR.pdf

Actuarial Valuations - The employer contribution rates effective July 1,2019 through June 30, 202l,were set using the
entry age normal actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit plan, this
method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (l) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount necessary to
finance benefits earned by employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization unfunded actuarial
accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over
20 years.
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For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer rate

consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees

during the current servics year), (b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, and (c) an

amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new

unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over l6 years.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation date December 3 l. 2018

Experience Study Report 2018, Published July 24,2019

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll

Asset valuation method Market value of assets

Inflation rate 2.50 percent

Investment rate of return 7.20 percenl

Discount rate 7.20 percent

Proiected salary increase 3.50 percent

Cost of Living Adjustment
Blend of 2% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%10.15%) in accordance with Moro
decision. blend based on service

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unise4 Social Security

Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the

valuation. Active members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with
Unise4 Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs

as described in the valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex

distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category

adiustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared

to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 3l of
even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2018 Experience Study which is reviewed for the

four-year period ending December 3 I , 20 1 8.

Assumed Asset Allocation :

Asset Class/Stratesv Low Range Hish Ranse OIC Tareet
Debt Securities 15.0% 25.00/o 20.0o/o

Public Equity 27.50/o 37.5% 32.5o/o

Real Estate 9.5o/o 15.s%o 12.5o/"

Private Equi8 14.0% 2t.0% 17.5o/"

Altemative Investments 7.5% l'7.50/o 15.0o/o

OpportuniE Portfolio 0.0o/o 3.0% 0.0o/o

Risk Pariw 0.0% 2.50/o 2.50/o

Total 100.0%

(Source: June 30, 2020 PERS CAFR; p. 102)
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9

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May20l9 the PERS
Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman's capital market assumptions team and the Oregon
Investment Council's (oIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman's assumptions for each of the asset classes
in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The OIC's description of each
asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a
consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not
based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market ,.onori" model.

Asset Class
Target

Allocation
Compound Annual
(Geometric) Return

Core Fixed Income 9.60% 4.07%
Short-Term Bonds 9.60% 3.68%
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.60% 5.19%

4g!r Yield Bonds 1.20% 5.74%
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 16.t7% 630%
Small Cap US Equities 1.35% 6.68%
NlptqCap US Equities 1.35% 6.'79%
Developed Foreign Equities 13.48% 6.91%
Emerging Market Equities 4.24% 7.69%
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.93% 7.25%
Private Equity t7.50% 833%
Real Estate (Properfy) 10,00% 5.55%
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50% 6.69%
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 1.50% 4.06%
Hedge Fund - Event-driven 038% 5.59%
Timber 1.13% 5.61%
Farmland Ll3% 6.12%
Infrastructure 2.2s% 6.67%
Commodities 1.13% 3.79%
Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.50%

(Source: June 30, 2020 PERS CAFR; p, 74)

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of the measurement dates of June 30,2020
and 2019 was 7.20 percent for both years for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the plan members and those of the conhibuting employers are
made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan,s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit pension plan was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability,
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Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - the following
presents the Dishict's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7 .20 percent, as

well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate

that is one percent lower (6.20 percent) or one percent higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate.

lYo

Decrease

(6.20%\

Discount
Rate

(7.20%)

l%
Increase

(8.20%)

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 26,229,077 $ 17,663,661 $ 10,481,162

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date

As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be determined based on the
benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit terms that occurs after that date are

reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent Measurement Date, However, Paragraph 80f of GASB 68

requires employers to briefly describe any changes between the Measurement Date and the employer's reporting
date that are expected to have a significant effect on the employer's share of the collective Net Pension Liability,
along with an estimate of the resulting change, if available. There are no changes subsequent to the June 30,2020
Measurement Date that meet this requirement.

OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)

Plan Description:
Employees of the District are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits of OPERS are established by the

Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 2384. Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension

Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29,2003. Chapter 238,{ created the Oregon Public Service
Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists of the Defined Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account Program
(IAP). Membership includes public employees hired on or after August 29,2003. PERS members retain their existing defined

benefit plan accounts, but member contributions are deposited into the member's IAP account. OPSRP is part of OPERS, and

is administered by the OPERS Board.

Pension Benefits:
Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined contribution plan, An IAP member

becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover account was established. If the

employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following
dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal
retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member

dies. Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover
account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 2l-year period or
an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum distribution limit.

Death Benefits:
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member's account balance, rollover
account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the installment
payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.
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Contributions:
Employees of the District pay six (6) percent of their covered payroll. Effective July l, 2020, currently employed Tier l/Tier
2 and oPSERP members earning $2,500 or more per month will haue a portion of ineir 6 percent monthly-IAF confributions
redirected to an Employee Pension Stability Account. The Employee Pinsion Stability Account will be used to pay part of
the member's future benefit. Of the 6 percent monthly IAP contribution, Tier 1/Tier 2 will have 2.5 percent redirected to the
Employee Pension Stability Account and oPSERP will have 0.75 percent redirected to the Employee pension Stability
Account, with the remaining going to the member's existing IAP account, Members may voluntarily choose to make
additional after-tax contributions into their IAP account to make a full 6 percent contribution to the IAp. The District did not
make any optional contributions to member IAP accounts for the year ended June30,202l.

Additional disclosures related to oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online, or by contacting
PERS at the following address: po Box 23700 Tigard, oR 97281-3i00.

http ://www. oregon. gov/pers/EMp/pages/GASB. aspx

Plan Description:
As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) the District contributes to the Retirement Health
Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other
postemployment benefit plan administered by OPERS. RHIA pays a monthly .*t ibution toward the cost of Medicare
companion health insurance premiums of eligible retirees. oregon Revised Statute (oRS) 238.420 established this trust fund.
Authorify to establish and amend the benefit provisions of Rrtn reside with the Oregon Legislature. The plan is closed to
new entrants after January I,2004' OPERS issues a publicly available financial ,.poJthut includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Oregon public Employees Retirement System,
PO Box 237A0, Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

Funding Policy:
Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (oRS 238.420), contribution requirements of the plan members and the
participating employers were established and may be amended only by the oregon iegislature. oRS iequire that an amount
equal to $60 dollars or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion health insrirance fremiums coverage, whichever is less,
shall be paid from the Retirement Health Insurance Account established by the employer, and unyn1oniirly cost in excess of
$60 dollars shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner prouid"d in oRsz:t.+10. To be eligible to receive this
monthly payment toward the premium cost the member must: (l) have eight years or more of qualifring service in OpERS at
the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the membir had eight years or more of creditable service in
OPERS, (2) receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in un onEirs-rponsored health plan. A surviving
spouse or dependent of a deceased OPERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if
he or she (l) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from OpBRS or (2) was insuied at the time the member died and
the member retired before May l, 1991.

Participating Employers are contractually required to conhibute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by OpERS, and theDistrict currently contributes 0.06% of annual covered OPERF payroll and 0.00% of opSRP payroll under a contractual
requirement in effect until June 30,2021. Consistent with GASB Statement 75, the opERS Board of Trustees sets the
employer contribution rates as a measure of the proporlionate relationship of the employer to all employers consistent with the
manner in which contributions to the oPEB plan are determined. The basis for itre employer's portion is determined by
comparing the employer's actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal y"ur io the plan with the total actual
contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. The District's contributions to RHIA are included in pERS
contributions (see Note 9) for all reporting years and equaled the required contributions each year.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLINTY. OREGON

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN - GHIA) (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2021 , the District reported a net OPEB liability/(asset) of ($243 ,027) for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability/(asset). The OPEB liability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2020, and, the total OPEB liability/(asset) used to
calculate the net OPEB liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,2018. Consistentwith
GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 59(a), the District's proportion of the net OPEB liability/(asset) is determined by
comparing the employer's actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal year to the Plan with the total actual
contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers, As of the measurement dates of June 30,2020 and2019, the District's
proportion was .12 percent and .08 percent, respectively. OPEB income for the year ended June 30, 2021 was868,462.

Components of OPEB Expense/(Income):

Employer's proportionate share of collective system OPEB Expense/(Income)

Net amortization of employer-specific deferred amounts from:
- Changes in propoftionate share (per paragraph 64 of GASB 75)
- Differences between employer contributions and employer's proportionate

share of system contributions (per paragraph 65 of GASB 75)

Employer's Total OPEB Expense/(Income)

$ (39,088)

(2t,789)

$ (60,877)

Components of Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Outflow

ofResources
Deferred Inflow

of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investrnents
Net changes in proportionate share

Differences between City contributions
and proportionate share of contributions
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below)
City contributions subsequent to measuring date
Deferred outfl ow (infl ow) of resources

$ $ 24,844
12,918

27,026
317 41 ,888

27,343 7 9,650

27,343 $ 79,6s0

The amount of contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the net OPEB
liability/(asset) in the fiscal year ended June 30,2022.

Subtotal amounts related to OPEB as deferred outflows of resources, $27,343, and deferred inflows of resources, ($79,650),
net to ($52,307) and will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
$

$

2022

2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Total

(46,01',7)

(24,806)
9,997
8,525
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All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon pERS Retirement Health
Insurance Account coslsharing Multiple-Employer other Postemployment Benefit (opEB) Flan Schedules of Employer
Allocations and OPEB Amounts by Employer report, as of and for the Year Ended June 30, ZozO. lnatindependently audited
report was dated March 15, 2021 and can be found at:

E

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation Date December 3l 201 8
Experience Study Report 2018 Published J 2019

Actuarial cost method Normal
Inflation rate 2.50

Investment rate of return 7.20

Discount rate 7.20
Projected salary increase 3.50

Retiree healthcare

participation Healthy retirees : 32Yo; Disabled retirees : 2002

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries

Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unise4
Social Security Data scale, with job category adjustments and set-
backs as described in the valuation. Active members: pub-2010
Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unise4 Social security Data
Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex distinct,
generational with Unise4 Social Security Data scale, with job category
adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events far into the future' Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results arJ compared
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of
even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are based on the 201 8 Experience Study which is reviewed for the
four-year period ending December 3 l, 2018.

Discount Rate:

ThediscountrateusedtomeasurethetotalOPEBliabilityasofthemeasurementdatesofJune 30,2020and2019was7.20
and 7 '20 percent, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the RHIA plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the RHIA
plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OpEB asset.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFTT PLAN - (RHrA) (CONTTNUED)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the PERS
Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman's capital market assumptions team and the Oregon
Investment Council's (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman's assumptions for each of the asset classes
in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The OIC's description of each
asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a

consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not
based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forwardJooking capital market economic model.

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Compound Annual
(Geometric) Return

Core Fixed Income 9.60% 4.07%
Short-Term Bonds 9.60% 3.68%
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.60% 5.19%
Hieh Yield Bonds 1.20% 5.74%
LareelMid Cap US Equities 16.l',|% 6.30%
Small Can US Eouities 1.35% 6.68%
Micro Cap US Equities 1.3s% 6.79%
Developed Foreisr Equities 13.48% 6.91%
Emersins Market Eouities 4.24% 7.69%
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.93% 7.25%
Private EquiW 17.50% 8.33%
Real Estate (Prooertv) 10.00% 5.55%
Real Estate REITS) 2.50% 6.69%
Hedse Fund of Funds - Diversified 1.50% 4.06%
Hedge Fund - Event-driven 38.00% 5.59%
Timber 1.13% s.61%
Farmland 1.13% 6.12%
Infrastructure 2.25% 6.6'.t%

Commodities 1.13% 3.79%
Assumed In/lation - Mean 2.50%

(Source: June 30, 2020 PERS CAFR; p. 74)

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate - The
following presents the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) calculated using the discount rate of
7 .20 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is one percent lower (6.20 percent) or one percent higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate.

ro

Decrease
(6.2OYo)

Discount
Rate

(7.20%

10

lncrease
(8.20%))

District's proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability (asset) $ (196,203) $ (243,027) S (283,063)
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date

There are no changes subsequent to the June 30, 2020 Measurement Date that meet this requirement and thus
would require a brief description under the GASB standard.

Plan I Description (Ilealth Insurance)

A single-employer retiree benefit plan is operated that provides postemployment health, dental vision and life
insurance benefits to eligible employees and their rpour"r, There are active and retired members in the plan.
The collective bargaining agreements with regular classified and licensed employees include incentives for
personnel who have been employed for a minimum of l8 years and retire betweenihe ages of 55 and 65. TheDistrict provides up to $150 per month for four years, io a maxirnum of $7,200, toiach early retiree for
medical, dental, and vision insurance. Benefits are not provided beyond age 65 und no benefits are provided
for any retiree whose employment began after octobe, it, l9gg. Managerial and confidential employees age
5 5 years old with l8 years of service or 5 8 years old with 12 years of sJrvice are eligible to receive the same
benefits, subject to the same limitations. As of the actuarial valuation performed Jrine 30, 2021, therc werel5 former employees receiving benefits under the plan. Details of the.ont.ibrtions and liability can be found
on page 42 ofthe financial report.

The post-retirement healthcare plan was established in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS)
243 '303. ORS stipulated that for the purpose of establishing healthcare premiuirs, the rate must be based on
all plan members, including both active employees and retiiees. The diiference between retiree claims cost,
which because of the effect of age is generally higher in comparison to allplan members, and the amount of
retiree healthcare premiums represents the implicit employer contribution.

An irrevocable trust has not been established (or equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan.

At June 30,2021the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Number of Covered Emnloyees
Actives
Retirees

Total Included in Valuation

212

l5
227
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Actuarial Assumptions

The District's total Health Insurance liability in the June 30,2021 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement
unless otherwise specifi ed.

Valuation Date June 30, 2020
Actuarial Cost Method Entrv Aee Normal
Investment return assumption
(interest discount) The 2.21Yo discount rate assumption is used in the

June 30, 2020 rale in the 2O-year General Obligation
Municipal Bond Index published by Bond Buver

Plan Participation l00o/o assumed will elect coverage at at retirement if
eligible for District paid insurance, 35olo assumed if
only elieible for self-pay insurance

Inflation Rate 2.5%;o in all future vears
Annual salary rate increases 3.5%o in all future years

Health care premium

Beginning in 2018, a 40Vo excise tax will be imposed under the Affordable Care Act
on employers if the aggregate value of medical coverage exceeds a tkeshold limit.
This excise tax is not included in the calculations because it is believed to be

immaterial in regard to the OPEB plan.

Sensitivity Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability and Health Care Cost Trend Rates of the District, as well as
what the District's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate I percentage point
higher or lower than current rates:

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

lo% Decrease
(r.2r%)

Discount
Rate

(2.2r%)
l oZ Increase

(3.2r%)
TotalOPEB Liability on June 30,2021 $ 406,885 $ 381,248 $ 357,189

Health Care Trend Sensitivity Analysis

lo% Decrease

Health Care

Trend Rates 1olo Increase

Total OPEB Liability on June 30,2021 $ 342,720 $ 381,248 $ 427,718

-36-



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTzuCT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of
to

For the year ended June 3 0, 2021, the District recognized Other Post-employment Benefit income of $17 ,241At June 30,2021, the District reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources, related to Other
Postemployment benefits from the following sources:

Deferral Source
Defered outflow

of resources
Deferred inflows

of resources
Diference between expected & actual experience
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Totals

$

39 498
$ 39.498

$ 41,966

$4r 966

Plan 2 Description (Stipends)

A single-employer retiree benefit plan is operated that provides postemployment health, dental vision and life
insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouser. There are active and retired members in the plan.
The collective bargaining agreements with regular classified and licensed employees include incentives for
personnel who have been employed for a minimum of 18 years and retire betweenihe ages of 55 and 65. The
District provides up to $150 per month for four years, io a maximum of $7,200, to each early retiree for
medical, dental' and vision insurance, Benefits are not provided beyond age 6'5 and no benefits are provided
for any retiree whose employment began after Octobe, il,lggg. Manageri-al and confidential employees age
55yearsoldwith lSyearsof serviceor58yearsoldwith 12yearsof serviceareeligibletoreceiveth"ru,n"
benefits, subject to the same limitations. As of the actuarial valuation performed June 30,2021, there were
l5 former employees receiving benefits under the plan. Details of the contributions and liabili ry can be found
on page 43 ofthe financial report.

An iffevocable trust has not been established (or equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan.

The amount of contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the net
OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Subtotal amounts reported as deferred outflows
$39,498, and deferued inflows of resources ($46,163), related to Other Post-employment benefits net to
($2,468), and will be recognized in Other Post-employment benefit income as fillo*s:

Year ended June 30:

2022 (247)
2023 (247)
2024 (247)
202s (247)
2026 (247)

Thereafter (1,233)
rotal _Spe!)
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

1%o lncrease
(3.21%

Total Pension Liability on June 30,2021 $ 59,934 $ 58,164 $ 56,382

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Inflows of Resources

Actuarial Assumptions

The District's total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement unless
otherwise specified,

Valuation Date June 30,2020
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Investment retum assumption
(interest discount)

The 2.2lYo discount rate assumption is used in the
June 30, 2020 rate in the 20-year General Obligation
Municipal Bond Index published by Bond Buyer

Plan Participation l00oZ assumed will elect coverage at at retirement if
eligible for District paid insurance,25Yo assumed if
only eligible for self-pay insurance

Medical premimum annual

trend rate 3.4Yo in all future years

Dental premimum annual

trend rate 3.40%
Vision premimums annual

trend rate 3.40%
Inflation Rate 2.5oh in all future years

Annual salary rate increases 3.5%o in all future years

Health care premium

Beginning in 201 8, a 40Yo excise tax will be imposed under the Affordable Care Act
on employers if the aggregate value of medical coverage exceeds a threshold limit.
This excise tax is not included in the calculations because it is believed to be

immaterial in regard to the OPEB plan.

Sensitivity Rates

The following presents the total Stipends Pension Liability, as well as what the District's total Stipend
Pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 1 percentage point higher or lower than
current rates:

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis
1o% Decrease

(r.2r%)
Discount Rate

(2.2r%) )

2020-21 Experience (Gain) Loss

2020-2l Change in Assumptions (Gain) Loss

Totals

Defened Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

$ 7,846 $ (3,604) $

2,271

Net

4,242

2,271

$ iO,l 17
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

Amounts reported as deferred outflows $10,117 of resources and deferred inflows ($3,604) of resources and
net to $6,513 will be recognized in OpEB expense as follows:

FiscalYear Endine:

Deferred Outflow
/ (Inflow)

Recogrized in
Pension Expense

2022

2023

2024
2025

2026

All Subsequent Years

Total

1,395

3,87r
1,247

$ 6.513

Additional information on the changes in OPEB liability can be found on page 43 of the financial report.

Interfund transfers are comprised of the following at June 30,2021

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects

$ $ 378,200

$ 378.200 $ 378.200

Interfund receivable/payables are comprised of the following at June 30,2021:

Interfund
Receivable

Interfund
Fund P able

135,481

242.7t9

General

SpecialRevenue
$ 3,175,292 $

3.t75.282

$3 t75 282$3 175 282

Transfers were made to fund operations, and the interfund receivable/payables are used as a pooling of cash
between various funds.
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13. PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS

The voters of the State of Oregon imposed a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and non-school
government operations. School operations include community colleges, local school districts, and education
service districts. The limitation provides that property taxes for school operations are limited to $5.00 for
each $1,000 of property market value. This limitation does not apply to taxes levied for principal and interest
on general obligation bonded debt. The result of this requirement has been that school dist.icis have become
more dependent upon state funding and less dependent upon property tax revenues as their major source of
operating revenue.

The State voters further reduced property taxes by replacing the previous constitutional limits on tax bases
with a rate and value limit in 1997 . This reduction is accomplished by rolling property values back to their
1995-96 values less 10% and limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3o/o per year,
subject to ceftain exceptions. Taxes levied to supporl bonded debt are exempted from the reductions. The
State Constitution sets restrictive voter approval requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new
bond issues, and requires the State to minimize the impact to school districts from the impact of the tax cuts.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A substantial portion of operating funding is received from the State of Oregon. State funding is deterrnined
through state wide revenue projections that are paid to individual school districts based on pupil counts and
other factors in the state school fund revenue formula. Since these projections and pupil counts fluctuate
they can cause the District to either have increases or decreases in revenue. Due to these future uncertainties
at the state level, the future effect on operations cannot be determined.

There is participation in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The federal audits for these programs for
the year ended June 30, 2021 have not been conducted. Accordingly, compliance with grant requirements
will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although such amounts, if any, are expected by
management to be immaterial.

The COVID-l9 outbreak in the United States has caused substantial disruption to business and local
governments due to mandated and voluntary suspension of operations and stay at home orders. There is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the outbreak and the long-term impact to the overall
economy. The ultimate impact on the District financials is not determinable.

15. TAX ABATEMENTS

As of June 30, 2021,the District had tax abatements through three programs: EnterpriseZone, Housing for
Low Income Rental, Transit Oriented Development - Eugene, that impacted their levied taxes and require
disclosure under GASB 77.
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Enterprise Zone (ORS 285C.175):

o The Oregon Enterprise Zone program is a State of Oregon economic development program established,
that allows for property tax exemptions for up to five years. ln exchange for receiving property tax
exemption, participating firms are required to meet the program requirements set by state statute and the
local sponsor.

The Enterprise Zone program allows industrial firms that will be making a substantial new capital
investment a waiver of 100% of the amount of real properly taxes attributable to the new investment ior a
5-year period after completion. Land or existing machinery or equipment is not tax exempt; therefore,
there is no loss of current property tax levies to localtaxing jurisdiction.

ffousino r Low fncome (oRS 307.s1s 307.535):

The Low Income Rental Housing exemption is available for quali$ing properties which, if occupied,
need to be occupied solely by low income persons, and the required rent payment reflects the full value
of the properfy tax exemption. The housing units on the property have to be constructed after the local
governing body adopted the provisions of ORS 307.515 to 307.523 .

a

A person that has only a leasehold interest in properfy is deemed to be a purchaser of that properry if the
person is obligated under the terms of the lease to pay the ad valorem taxes on the real and personal
propeffy used in this activity on that property or the rent payable has been established to reflect the
savings resulting from the exemption.

Transit oriented Development - Eueene (oRS 307.600 to 307.637):

o This law is in the publics' interest to stimulate the construction of transit supportive multiple-unit
housing in the core areas of Oregon's urban centers to improve the balance between the resideniial and
commercial nature of those areas, and to ensure full-time use of the areas as places where citizens of the
community have an opportunity to live as well as work.

In any District, or in any county with a population of over 300,000, the exemption shall apply only to
multiple-unit housing preserved, established, constructed, added to or converted on land within an arez
designated under ORS 307.606 (Exemption limited to tax levy of District or county that adopts ORS
307.600 to 307 .637) (2) or within a designated urban renewal or redevelopment area iormed puisuant to
ORS chaptet 457. This program exempts properly taxes for a period of 10 years which doesn't include
the land in the exemption.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 202T, the District had abated property taxes totaling $101,748 under
these programs.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN OPEB LIABILITY AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

.Inna 10 2021

HEALTH TNSURANCE BENEFTT (OPEB):
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Year Total OPEB
Ended Liability - Service

June 30, Beginninq Cost lnterest
2021 $ ssq242 T-71^064 E-d289-
2020 424,489 20,352 8,802
2019 438,364 18,643 16,025
2018 439,504 18,013 16,s22
2017 N/A

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Experience Changes of Benefit

$- _Assumptions _Payl-lelts. .End of year payroll
$ - $ (46,347t$ 38iu8 E-lo-,o8-ft50-

Total OPEB
Liability -

398,242
424,489
438,364
439,500

Estimated
Covered

Total OPEB
Liability as a

% of Covered
Payroll
3.78o/o

4.09o/o

5.10o/o

5.45o/o

5.2oo/o

47,398 (50,360)

(b/c)
Contributions as

a Percentage
of Payroll

(52,43e)
(48,543)
(35,475)

9,746,232
8,318,930
8,037,614
7,765,811

(a)
Year Actuarially

Ended Determined
June 30, Contribution

2021 $ 29,106
2020 28,907
2019 34,668
2018 34,335
2017 N/A

(b)
Contributions

During

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Year Difference
$ N/A $ N/A

(b)-(a)

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

(c)

Covered
Payroll

N/A$ 10,087350
9,746,232
8,3 1 8,930
8,037,614
7,765,811

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

The above table presents the most recent actuarial valuations for the Dishict's OPEB Health lnsurance and it provides information thatapproximates the funding progress of the plan.

The amounts presented for each fiscal year are actuarially determined and rolled fonrvard.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 1o-year trend has beencompiled' information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENET'ITS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PENSION LIABILITY AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

.Iunc 3O- 2O2l

STTPENDS (OPEB):
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Year Total OPEB
Ended Liability -

June 30, Beginning
2021 $ 76,617
2020 73,697
2019 81,165
2018 101,847
2017

925
1,420
1.372

(b)

Contributions
During
Year

$- t'l/A -
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Service Experience Changes of Benefit Liability -
Cost lnterest _ 

(Gain)/Loss Assumptions payments End of y6ar
$ e57 illL+ff T--- - e----.-sTlaTts---Ttroa

Total OPEB

76,617
73,697
81,1 65

101,847

Estimated
Covered
Payroll

Total OPEB
Liability as a

o/o of Covered
Payroll
8.3%
11.3o/o

6.0%
6.8o/o

8.90k

$

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

(a)
Actuarially
Determined (b)-(a) Covered

3,287

2,374

(b/c)
Contributions as

a Percentage
of Payroll

1,436
2,913
3,718

14,672

(16,596)

Payroll

(17,400)
(1 1,801)
(1 1,550)

699,962
676,292

1,230,876
1,189,252
1,149,056

Year
Ended

(c)

June 30, Contribution
2021 $ 3,815

Difference
$ N/A

2020
2019
2018
2017

3,756
1,550
2,307

$ 699,962
676,292

1,230,876
1,189,252
1,149,056

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

The above table presents the most recent actuarial valuations for the District's post-retirement pension stipend and it provides information
that approximates the funding progress of the plan.

The amounts presented for each fiscal year are actuarially determined and rolled foMard.

These schedules are presented to illushate the requirements to show information for 1 O years. However, until a full 1 0-year trend has
been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COT]NTY. OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30,2021

PERS

Year

Ended

June 30,

(a)

Employer's

proportion of
the net pension

(b)

Employer's

proportionate share

ofthe net pension

(c)

Employer's

covered

pavroll

(b/c)

NPL as a

percentage

of covered

payroll

Plan fiduciary

net position as

a percentage of
the total pension

liabiliA(NPL) Iiabilitv (NPL)

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

20t4

0.081% $

0.085

0.084

0.082

0.085

0.091

0.1 57

0.157

17,663,661 $

14,682,968

12,659,739

r 1,038,816

12,789,725

5,230,660

(3,553,84 l)
8,000,906

8,931,397

8,779,590

8,597,2t1

8,288,687

7,232,198

6,983,550

6,3 r 8,280

9,076,084

197.8 %

167.2

147.3

133.2

176.8

74.9

(s6.2)

88.2

7s.8 %

80.2

82.1

83. r

80.5

91.9

103.6

92.0

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determine d at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date of6/30 for each year presented.

Theseschedulesarepresentedtoillustratetherequirementstoshowinformationforl0years. However,until afull l0-yerhend
has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Statutorily
required

conhibution

Conhibutions in
relafion to the

statutorily required

contribution

Contribution
deficiency

(excess)

Employer's

covered
pavroll

Contributions

as a percent

ofcovered
payroll

2021

2020
2019

2018

2017

2016
2015

2014

2,833,434
2,619,869
2,058,026
2,021,818
l,6l1,618
t,495,096
1,057,777

988,356

24.2 %
29.3

23.4

23.5

19.4

20.7

15. I
15.6

$ $$ 2,833,434 $

2,619,869
2,058,026
2,021,818

l,6l1,618
1,495,096

1,057 
"777

988,356

11,71t,634
8,931,397

8,779,590
8,s97,2t1
8,288,687

7,232,198
6,983,550

6,3 18,280

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially detemine d at l2t3l and rolled foruard to the measurement date of 6/30 for each year presented.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show infomation for l0 years. However, until a full lO-year trend
has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30.2021

OPEB - RHIA

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB ASSET/(LLABILITY) FOR RHIA

(b)
(a) District's

Year District's Proportion ofthe proportionate share
Ended net OPEB ofthe net OPEB

June30, asseV(liability)(NOA(L)) assey(liabilityxNoA(L))

(c)

District's
covered
payroll

(b/c)

NOA"/(L) as a

percentage

of covered

Davroll

Plan fiduciary
net position as

a percentage of
the total pension

liability

2021

2020

2019
2018

2017

0.11927
0.07824

0.0793s
0.07666

0.07429

%$ 8,93t,397
8,779,s90

8,597,211
8,288,687

7,232,198

a1a ol

1.72

1.03

0.39
(0.28)

150.1 %
144.4

124.0

t08.9
90.0

243,027 $

151,195

88,573

3t,995

Q0,t7s)

Theamountspresenledforeachfiscal yearwereactuariallydeterminedatl2/31 androlledforwardtothemeasurementdateof6/30foreachyearpresented.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for l0 years. However, until a full l0-year trend has
been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

Amounts for covered payroll ( c ) use the prior year's data to match the measurement date used by the OPEB plan for each year.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FOR RHLA

Statutorily

required

contribution

Contributions in
relation to the

statutorily required

contribution

Contribution
deficiency
(excess)

District's

covered

payroll

Contributions

as a percent

of covered
payroll

202t
2020

2019

2018

201't

$ N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$ N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$ $ l l,7l 1,634

8,93t,397
8,779,590

8,s97,2n
8,288,687

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

%

The amounts peresented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date of6/30 for eaoh year presented.

Theseschedulesarepresentedtoillustratetherequirementstoshowinformationforl0years. However,untilafulllo-yeartrendhas
been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

statutorily required contributions prior to 2020 are included within PERS contributions (see p. 36)
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETAND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

GENERAL FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

REVENUES

Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Instruction
Support Services

Contingency

Total Expenditures

Excess ofRevenue Over, (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES)

Transfers Out
Apportionment of Funds

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

t2

24,035,325 24.03 5,325 24,320,453

$ 9,140,825 $

1 4,894,500
9,140,825

I 4,894,500

7,786,801 (l)
8,s22,332 (t)

$ 9,349,862 $

14,967,279 (2)

7,422,886
8,048,93 I

209,037

72,779

3,3t2

285,128

9,486,801
8,222,332

363,91s
473,401

1,112,5711.5 12,57 | 1,112,571 (1)

19.221,704 l7,421,704 15,471,817 1,949.887

4,813,621 6,613,621 8,848,636

(378,200)

2,235,015

(378,200)
(6,295,42r)

(378,200)
(8,09s,421) (

2,460,000

l) (7,632,95t) 462,470

(6,673,621) (8,473,621) (8,01l,l5l)

(r,860,000) 837,485

462,470

(1,860,000)

2,460,000 3 372

2,697,48s

808,372

$ 600,000 _t_600,000_ $ 4,105,857 $ 3,505,857

( I ) Appropriation level

(2) Included in this is the required state revenue match of $481 the District must recognize for National School Lunch Support
in order to meet the general cash assistance match.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRJCT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDTTURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SPECIAL REVENUE FTIND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

VAzuANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

REVENUES

Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Instruction
Support Services

Enterprise and Community Services

Total Expenditures

Excess ofRevenues Over, (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES)

Transfers In
Apportionment of Funds

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

(l) Appropriation Level

21,838,233 28,638,233

$ t,812,233 $

14,687,000

5,339,000

1,882,233 (l
19,517,000 (l
7,239,000 (l

$ 2,415,03 8

18,845,513

4,985,786

532,805

(671,487)
(2,253,2t4)

$

26,246,337 (2,391,896)

2,6t4,949
6,360,494

65,500

2,614,94e (t)
7,360,494 (1)

65,500 (l)

2,400,1 58

7,481,600
214,791

( 12r, r 06)

65,500

9,040,943 10,040,943 9,881,758 159,185

12,797,290 18,597,290 16,364,579 (2,232,71t)

165,000

(13,43 1,290)

165,000
(19,23t,2e0) (t)

135,481

(16,559,844)
(29,sr9)

2,671,446

13,266,290\ (19,066,290) (16,424,363) 2,641,927

(46e,000)

469,000

(469,000)

469,000

(59,784)

583,552

409,2t6

n4,552

$$ $ 523,768 $ 523,768
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUALAND BUDGET

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

DEBT SERVICE FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGETREVENUES

Local Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Support Services

Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

(l) Appropriation Level

$ 743,200 $ 743,200 $ 793,937 $ 50,73'l

743,200 743,200 793,937 50,737

200

795,000
200 (r)

795,000 r) 793,263
200

1,737

79s,200 795,200 793,263 r,937

(52,000)

52,000

(52,000)

s2,000

674

30,305

52,674

(21.695\

$$ $ 30,979 $ 30,979
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET

For the Year Ended June 30 2021

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

REVENUES

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Support Services

Facilities Construction
Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess ofRevenues Over, (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES)

Transfers In

Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

(l) Appropriation Level

$ $ 500,000 (l) $ 344,3e9 $ (155,60r)

500,000 344,399 (1 55,601)

230,000

63,200

230,000 (l)
500,000 (r)

91,642
350,589

63,067

138,358

149,4t1
13363,200 ( 1)

293,200 193,200 505,298 287,902

(293,200) (793,200)

213,200 213,200

(s05,298) 287,902

242,719 29,5t9

(80,000)

80,000

(8o,oo0)

80,000

8 I,820

62,037

l6 I,820

(r7,963)

$ $ $ 143,857 $ 143,857
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUALAND BUDGET

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGETREVENUES

Local Sources

EXPENDITURES

Support Services

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

(l) Appropriation Level

$ r 16,000 $ 116,000 $ 229,372 $ rt3,372

65 r,000 65 r,000 (l) 1n,276 539 724

65 r,000 65 1,000 ltl,276 539,724

(53s,000)

535,000

(535,000)

535,000

r 18,096

390,580

$ 508,676

653,096

(144,420)

$ 508,676$ $

-50-



LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
OFTAXES UNCOLLECTED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

TAX
YEAR

ORIGINAL
LEVY OR
BALANCE

UNCOLLECTED
AT 7n/20

DEDUCT
DISCOUNTS

ADJUSTMENTS

ROLLS
ADD

INTEREST

CASH
COLLECTIONS

BY COUNTY
TREASURER

BALANCE
UNCOLLECTED OR
UNSEGREGATED

AT 6t30t2r
TO

GENERALFUND:

CURRENT:
2020-2r

PRIOR YEARS

$ 8,000,897$'212,896$(20,265) $ 2,763 $ 7,636,368 $ 134,131

2019-20
2018-19
2017-18
2016-t7
Prior

146,765
62,909
33,595

14,219

34,163

(148)
(s8)
(lt)

(e)
(1)

( I 1,430) $
(8,262)
(7,046)
(3,583)
(6,607)

s rts
5,870

5,601

2,950
2,962

67,816
3 1,683

19,786
8,575

3,372

72,892
28,892
12,375

5,020
27 147

Total Prior 29t,6st (227)

Total General Fund $ 8,292,548 s 212,669 $

RECONCILIATION OF REVENUE

Cash Collections by County Treasurer Above
Accrual of Receivables:

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2021

Change between current and prior Unavailable Revenue, see pg 9
Payments in Lieu of Taxes

Total Revenue

(36,928) 22,608 131,232

(57,te3) $ 25,371 s 7,767,600 $

$

$

146,326

280,456

GENERAL
FTIND

7,767,600

(22,140)
t7,396
(6,451)

2,979

7,759,384
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF BOND AND INTEREST TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
For the Year Ended June 30. 2021

DATE
OF

ISSUE

MATURED
BONDS &
COUPONS

OUTSTANDING
7n/2020

BONDS &
COUPONS

MATURING
DURING

THE YEAR

BONDS
REDEEMED AND
COUPONS PAID

DURING
THE YEAR

MATURED
BONDS &
COUPONS

OUTSTANDING
6/30/202r

October 31,2007
January 22,2020

$ $ 793,263 $ 793,263 $

Total $ $ 793,263 $ 793,263 $
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF BOND REDEMPTION AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
June 30,2021

SERIES 2OO7

YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST
INTEREST

RATES

Due 6/1

Due l2l30

& 6t30

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027-28

550,000

6l 5,000

680,000

750,000

830,000

390,000

270,459

239,565

205,021

166,825

124,698

l 05,037

5.620/o

5.620/o

5.620/o

4,620/o

4.620/o

5.620/o

TOTALS $ 4,815,000 $ I,lll,605

SERIES 2O2O

YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST
INTEREST

RATES

Due ll22 Due ll22
2022

2023

2024

2025

2026
2027-31

2032-35

39,333

40,682
42,077

43,520

45,013

249,3tt
232.036

23,735

22,386
20,990

t9,547
18,054

66,025
20,232

3.43o/o

3.43%
3.43%
3.43o/o

3.43o/o

3.43o/o

3.43%

TOTALS $ 69t,972 $ r90,969
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PAULY, RocERS aNn Co., p.C.
12700 SW 72"d Ave. i Tigard, OR 97223
(503)620-2632 I (s03) 684-7s23FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas. com

December 6,2021

Independent Auditors' Report Required bv Oreson State Regulations

We have audited the basic financial statements of Lane Education Service District as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2021. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the basic financial
statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295)
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
Programs funded from outside sources.
Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A,Z7gB.,27gC).

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe Lane Education Service
District was not in substantial compliance with ceftain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants,
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-i0-000
through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, except as follows:

r Expenditures were within authorized appropriations, except as noted on page 20 of the financial
statements
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OAR 162-10'0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal controls over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls over financial
reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and the
Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

4KZr*
Roy R. Rogers, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT

LANE COUNW. OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30,2O2L

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass

Through
Passed

Through to
Title

U.S. Department of Education

Title l-C - Migrant Education

Title l-C - Migrant Education

Title l-C - Migrant Education/preschool
Title l-C - Migrant Education/preschool
Title l-C - Migrant Education/Summer
Title l-C - Migrant Education/Summer
Title l-C - Migrant Education/Summer

EI.ECSE

Regional Services

Juvenile Detention
EI-ECSE

Total IDEA Cluster

Perkins Basic

Perkins Basic

Perkins Basic

Perkins Reserve Fund

Perkins Reserve Fund

Oregon Pathways/STEM Apprenticeships

EI-ECSE

MTSS Regional Coaches

Title lll - ELA

Title lll - ELA

ESSER I

ESSER II

Youth Transition Program

U.S. Department of Labor

WIOA

U,S. Department of Agriculture
Conservation Education/Career pathways

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education
Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education
Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Educatlon

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Lane Community College
Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education
Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Oregon Dept of Education

Pass ization

53723

58947

53738

s8919

57316

66111

61772

LLtt6-A7
1.t047-A3

L2379
!ItL6-A7

LCCi.

57s92

52498
57618

52476

ttlt6-A7
46077

50258

s3430

58428

6s028
Total ESSER

Expenditures Sub

337,s82
199,95L

20,60L

27,649

186,789

26,473

L,260

84.011

84.011

84.011

84.011

84.011

84.011

84.011

800,305

84.O27

84.027

84,027

84,173

84.048

84.048

84.048

84.048

84.048

84.181

84.3234

84.36s

84.365

84.4250

84.425D

62s,386

1,043,577

1,500

t02,764

625,1.6L

702,727
t,773,227 727,ggg

37,801

477,523

4r,610
55,784

36,0s4

22r,942
386

131.

1,688

Oregon Dept of Education 84.051 s2039

588,772 224,147

82,62! t4,682

380,t27380,264

29,969

6,072

34,896 7,497
40,968 1,497

227,367

68,300

295,667

455,813 217,055

4,447,606 1,555,395

538,180

538,180

3,3t2

Oregon Dept of Human Services g4.t26A t60724

Total U.S. Department of Education

Lane Workforce Partnership 17.259 31136
Total U.S, Department of Labor

U.S. Forest Service 10.599 800-014
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

SEFA Total
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PAULY, RocERs AND Co., p.C.
12700 SW 72nd Ave. r Tigard, OR 97223
(s03) 620-2632 | (s03) 684_7s23 FAI'
www.paulyrogersandcocpas. com

December 6,2021

To the Board of Directors
Lane Education Service District
Lane County, Oregon

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements PerformeO in accordance With Government

Auditing Standards

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
arrd the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmrri Auditirg Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the gJvernmental activities, each
major fund, and the remaining fund information of Lane Education Service Districf as of and forthe year ended
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 6,2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements, we considered the internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose ofexpressing our opinions on the basic financial statements, but nti foi the purpose ofexpressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not expresi an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealvtess is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the basic financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not ideitifu any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control or on compliance,
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

v"/
Royh..

?74*
Rogers, CPA

PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C
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PAULY, RocnRs AND Co., p.C.
12700 SW 72"d Ave, o Tigard, OR 97223
(s03) 620-2632 r (s03) 684-7s23 FAX
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December 6,2021

To the Board of Directors
Lane Education Service District
Lane County, Oregon

Independent Auditors'Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required By the Uniform Guidance

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal program

We have audited Lane Education Service District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described inthe OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors'results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the major federal programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audii of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of ttre UniteO
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refered to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

ln our opinion, Lane Education Service District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30,2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material wealcness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signi/icant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identifu all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identi$ any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

?, v Zr.u,
no/n. Rogers, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COLINTY. OREGON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended Iune 30, 2021

SECTION I _ SUMMARY OF A{IDITORS' RESULTS

FINAIICIAL STATEMENTS

Type of Auditors' report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

r Material weakness(es) identified?
o Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Any GAGAS audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance?

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over Major Programs:
o Material weakness(es) identified?
r Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance?

IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR PROGRAMS

CFDA NUMBER(S): NAME OF FEDERAL PROGAM:

IDEA Cluster

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

_Yes X No

Yes

XNo

X None reported

XNo

XNo

X None reported

Yes XNo

84.027.84.173

Dollar threshold used to distinguish befween Ope A and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

s7s

X Yes No
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LANE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT
LANE COTINTY" OREGON

SCF{EDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SECTION II _ F'INAI\CIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

None

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF F'EDERAL AWARDS

I. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity under programs of
the federal government. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the audit requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations, it is not intended to and does not present the net position, changes in net position, or
cash flow of the District.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
schedule represents adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as

expenditures in prior years. The District has elected not to use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate as

allowed under Uniform Guidance, due to the fact that they already have a negotiated indirect cost rate with the
State of Oregon, and therefore are not allowed to use the de minimis rate.
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